
Minutes of the Zoning Hearing of May 20, 2013 
Page 1 

 

VILLAGE OF PALMETTO BAY, FLORIDA 
MINUTES OF THE MONDAY, MAY 20, 2013 

MEETING OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL – ZONING HEARING 
Village Hall Chambers 

9705 E. Hibiscus Street, Palmetto Bay, FL 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Stanczyk called the 

meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  The following members of the Village Council were 
present: 

 
Mayor Shelley Stanczyk 
Vice Mayor John DuBois 
Councilman Patrick Fiore 
Councilman Tim Schaffer 
Councilwoman Joan Lindsay 
 
The following staff members were present: 
Village Manager Ron E. Williams 
Village Attorney Eve Boutsis 
Village Clerk Meighan Alexander 
Director of Planning and Zoning Darby Delsalle 
Zoning Administrator Efren Nunez 
 
Mayor Stanczyk led the pledge of allegiance. 

 
2. Approval  of Minutes  ‐  Zoning Hearing  of  February  25,  2013:   Vice Mayor DuBois 

moved to approve the Minutes, as submitted.  Seconded by Councilman Schaffer.  All 
voted in favor.  The Minutes were approved unanimously (5‐0.) 

 
3. Reading of decorum statement/Swearing in of witnesses:  Clerk Alexander read the 

following decorum statement: Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks 
or who  becomes  boisterous while  addressing  the  Village  of  Palmetto  Bay  Council 
shall be barred from further audience at this meeting before the Village of Palmetto 
Bay Council by the presiding officer, unless permission to continue or again address 
the council be granted by the majority vote of the council members. 

 
Attorney Boutsis provided an explanation concerning  the quasi‐judicial proceedings 
and swore in those individuals who wished to speak. 

 
Attorney Boutsis announced that the applicant had requested deferral of Item d.  She 
asked  if  the  Council  would  consider  a  motion  to  defer  with  leave  to  amend.  
Councilwoman  Lindsay  so moved.   Seconded by Councilman Schaffer.   All voted  in 
favor.  The motion carried (5‐0.) 



Minutes of the Zoning Hearing of May 20, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
4. The  following  item  is being  considered pursuant  to  Sections 30‐30 of  the Village’s 

Land Development Code:  
 
a. Applicant:    BROWNE REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS, LLC. (PLT‐13‐001) 

Location:    9046 SW 160th Terrace, Palmetto Bay   Zoned: R‐1M 
Request:  Notice of Plat Amendment to re‐plat a portion of the Karenero 

Falls plat vacating a portion of the utility easement reducing it 
from 6’ to 4’ along the (western) interior side property line on 
a  developed  parcel  zoned Modified  Single‐Family  Residential 
District (R‐1M). 

 
Councilman Fiore moved this item forward.  Seconded by Vice Mayor DuBois. 
 
Director Delsalle provided a PowerPoint presentation.   He provide the history of 
the parcel and advised that the application is requesting a re‐plat, as the property 
was originally platted  in 1967 with  the setback of  five  feet.   He stated  that  the 
staff had not received any objection from the local utility providers. 
 
Attorney Carlos  Lerman,  2611 Palm Bay Boulevard,  representing  the  applicant, 
stated that the purpose  is to provide clarity for the title.   He concurred that the 
relevant utilities have no objection. 
 
Councilwoman  Lindsay  asked  if  the  homes  behind  this  parcel  have  a  similar 
problem.  Director Delsalle advised that they do.   
 
Mayor Stanczyk asked  if  there  is a  remedy  to  correct all  the parcels.   Attorney 
Boutsis stated that there is a process; however, it would require authorization be 
given by the individual property owners. 
 
Mayor Stanczyk opened the public hearing.  No one wished to be heard. 
 
Mayor  Stanczyk  called  the  question.    All  voted  in  favor.    The motion  passed 
unanimously (5‐0.) 

 
b. Applicant:    MICHAEL E. & BARBARA J. BASS (VPB‐13‐007) 

Location:    15800 SW 82nd Avenue, Palmetto Bay    Zoned: E‐S 
Request:  Variance of setback requirements to permit a 9’ x 20’ addition 

to an existing fabric awning carport to setback 15’ where 20’ is 
required  from  the  (north)  interior  side property  line and 8.5’ 
from the principle structure where 10’  is required on a parcel 
zoned Estate Suburban Single‐Family District (E‐S). 

 



Minutes of the Zoning Hearing of May 20, 2013 
Page 3 

 

Vice Mayor DuBois moved this item forward.  Seconded by Councilman Fiore. 
 
Director  Delsalle  provided  staff  report.    He  advised  that  the  applicant  is 
requesting canvass carport to be built behind an existing car port.   He explained 
that the application did not meet the hardship standard. 
 
Attorney Boutsis asked for Council disclosures, which were provided as follows: 
 
Mayor Stanczyk  stated  that  she  is  familiar with  the property; did not have any 
discussions concerning this application; and, she will remain impartial. 
Vice Mayor DuBois advised that he had no disclosures. 
Councilman Fiore noted he had nothing to disclose. 
Councilman Schaffer stated that he did not have contract with anyone concerning 
this application. 
Councilwoman Lindsay stated that she did not have anything to disclose. 
 
Mr. Larry Gershwin, contractor, explained that the existing structure  is 18’ x 18’ 
and  the property owner wishes  to have  a 9’  x 20’  canopy  installed behind  the 
existing  one.   He  stated  that  the  applicant will  replace  the  existing  canopy  in 
order for the entire area to be consistent.  He opined that there will be minimum 
impact, as there is sufficient foliage between the homes. 
  
Vice  Mayor  DuBois  asked  if  the  neighbor  closest  to  the  property  had  any 
objections.  Mrs. Barbara Bass advised the the home nearest to them is rented. 
 
Councilwoman Lindsay asked  for clarification  regarding  the  inconsistencies with 
the  Code.    Director  Delsalle  advised  that  the  lot  is  standard  lot  and  there  is 
nothing irregular about the parcel. 
 
Councilwoman  Lindsay  remarked  that  the  hardship  ordinance  is  clear;  staff 
reports  that  there  were  no  inconsistencies.    Each  criteria  was  reviewed.  
Councilwoman Lindsay asked Director Delsalle if the recommendation was denial, 
overall. 
 
Mayor Stanczyk asked  if  the County Ordinance regarding carports and canopies 
contains criteria that would make the application  legal.   Director Delsalle stated 
that  the  County  has  a  specific  definition  and  criteria  and  no  separation 
requirement.   He added that under the Village’s 2004 Code,  it would have been 
permitted. 
 
Mayor Stanczyk opened the public hearing.   The follow  individual addressed the 
Council:  Gary Pastorella, 6940 SW 142 Terrace.   
 



Minutes of the Zoning Hearing of May 20, 2013 
Page 4 

 

Mayor Stanczyk closed public hearing. 
 
Councilwoman  Lindsay noted  that  the hardship  variance has  specific  standards 
that must be followed, as they are contained in the Village’s Code. 
 
Mayor  Stanczyk  remarked  that  the  Code was modified  by  the Village  in  2009, 
during a time when Council was attempting to create the quality appearance of 
the  Village.    She  stated  that  Council  needs  to  be  careful  with  regard  to 
precedence. 
  
Councilman Fiore  stated  that he disagrees and believes  that only 1 ½  feet  is  in 
question and the homeowners want to improve their property. 
  
Vice Mayor DuBois  stated  that  the  staff needs  to  review ordinances  that  seem 
overly restrictive; however, the Code should be followed. 
 
Mayor  Stanczyk  called  the  question.    The  motion  to  approve  failed  (2  to  3, 
Councilman Fiore and Vice Mayor DuBois voting in favor.) 
 
 
Attorney  Boutsis  asked  the  Council  to  provide  disclosures  concerning  the  first 
subject  matter  (Browne  Estates  re‐plat):    The  Mayor,  Vice  Mayor,  and  each 
Council Member individually indicated they did not have anything to disclose. 
 

c. Applicant:    HUMBERTO & TALIA SEZUMAGA JTRS (VPB‐13‐008) 
Location:    8130 SW 138th ST      Zoned: E‐M 
      Palmetto Bay, Florida  
 
Request:  Variance of setback requirements to permit an addition to an 

existing  single‐family  home  to  setback  22.5’  where  25’  is 
required  from  the  (west) side street property  line on a parcel 
zoned Estate Modified Single‐Family District (E‐M). 

 
Vice Mayor DuBois moved this item forward. Seconded by Councilman Fiore.   
 
Attorney  Boutsis  asked  the  Council  to  provide  disclosures.    The Mayor,  Vice 
Mayor,  and  each  Council  Member  individually  indicated  they  did  not  have 
anything to disclose. 
 
Director Delsalle provided staff report.  He advised that staff determined that the 
criteria was inconsistent with the code and recommends denial. 
 
Councilwoman Lindsay asked if the applicant was advised of a solution. 



Minutes of the Zoning Hearing of May 20, 2013 
Page 5 

 

 
Mr. Nunez  advised  that  the  issues  concerning  the  setbacks,  and  the  applicant 
wished to construct a standard size bedroom 10’ x 13’ bedroom.  
 
Vice Mayor DuBois asked if lot coverage was a concern.   
 
Councilwoman  Lindsay  stated  that  this  application  is  similar  to  the previous  in 
that the Council must comply with the hardship standard defined by Code. 
 
Director Delsalle stated that the property is 4% under the maximum lot coverage. 
 
Mr. corrected his Darby –  lot coverage  is 32%,  they are at 28%.   4% under  the 
max lot coverage. 
 
Mr.  Humberto  Sezumaga  stated  that  he  is  seeking  permission  to  build  larger 
rooms  to  accommodate  a  family  of  five  in  this  2,100  square  foot  home.    He 
explained  that  he  submitted  a  variance  application  and  also  had  adjacent 
homeowner’s  sign  for  approval,  although  it  is  not  required.   Mrs.  Sezumaga 
stated that all the neighbors signed, approving the application. 
 
Mayor Stanczyk opened  the public hearing.   Mr. Gary Pastorella came  forward.  
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Councilman Schaffer stated that there may be a possibility to consder concerning 
the location of the home on the parcel. 
 
Mr. Nunez stated that there was an option:  the applicant can add a two story up 
to  35’  as  an  alternative.   He  stated  that  the  location of  the  septic  tank would 
make construction quite expensive as the septic tank would have to be relocated. 
 
The Council briefly discussed  the options.   Mayor Stanczyk asked  the applicant 
what type of screening would he anticipate. 
 
Mr. Sezmuga stated that he was planning on constructing a cinder block wall. 
 
Councilman Schaffer stated that while he feels the application may come close to 
meeting  the  criteria  for  hardship,  staff  has  not  been  able  to  say  that  the 
application is consistent with the Code.   
 
Councilwoman Lindsay asked Director Delsalle  if he believes criteria 2 –  special 
conditions – could be applied. 
 



Minutes of the Zoning Hearing of May 20, 2013 
Page 6 

 

Manager Williams stated that the staff must abide by the village codes, and does 
not have  the ability  to  interject variables.   He noted  that  the professional  staff 
made its judgment based upon the reading of the code; discretion rests with the 
Council. 
 
Mayor  Stanczyk  called  the  question.    The  motion  to  approve  failed  (1  to  4, 
Councilman Fiore being the sole affirmative vote.) 
 

d. Applicant:  LCA ACQUISITION CORPORATION (SOUTH MOTORS INFINITY) 
(VPB‐13‐009) 

Location:    16915 & 16945 S. Dixie Hwy     Zoned: MC 
      Palmetto Bay, Florida  
Request:  Variance of parking requirements to allow a surface parking lot 

to be located in front of the building along the southbound US‐
1  frontage,  where  such  parking  lots  are  required  to  be 
screened  by  a  linear  building  on  a  parcel  zoned Mixed‐Use 
Corridor (MC). 

Item deferred at the commencement of the meeting. 
 

4.  Adjourn:  The meeting was adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
                                                                                                                                                           
Prepared and submitted by: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Meighan J. Alexander, CMC 
Village Clerk 
   
Approved by the Village Council on 
this ____ day of September, 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Mayor Shelley Stanczyk 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105,  IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS 
COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A 
RECORD  OF  THE  PROCEEDINGS,  AND  THAT  FOR  SUCH  PURPOSE,  THE  AFFECTED  PERSON MAY  NEED  TO 
ENSURE  THAT  A  VERBATIM  RECORD  OF  THE  PROCEEDING  IS  MADE,  WHICH  RECORD  INCLUDES  THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE 
CONSENT  BY  THE  VILLAGE  FOR  THE  INTRODUCTION  OR  ADMISSION  OF  OTHERWISE  INADMISSIBLE  OR 
IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR DOES  IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY 
LAW.   WHILE  THE  FLORIDA  STATUTES  DO  NOT  REQUIRE  TAPE  RECORDINGS,  TO  THE  EXTENT  THAT  TAPE 
RECORDINGS ARE MADE, THE TAPES MAY BE REQUESTED  FROM THE VILLAGE CLERK  FOR REVIEW AND/OR 
COPYING.  THE VILLAGE OF PALMETTO BAY CAN NOT GUARANTEE QUALITY OF ANY RECORDING. 

 


